ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 1, 2003
8:01 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz

MEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 5
Establishing a task force to nmake recommendations regarding a
new design for the official seal of the State of Al aska.

- MOVED HCR 5 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 134

"An Act authorizing the Departnment of Corrections to enter into
agreenents wth nmunicipalities for new or expanded public
correctional facilities in the Fairbanks North Star Borough, the
Mat anuska- Susitna Borough, Bethel, and the Mmnicipality of
Anchor age. "

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO 161

"An Act allow ng expenses of the correctional industries program
that may be financed from the correctional industries fund to
i nclude the salaries and benefits of state enpl oyees.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 183

"An Act relating to retirenent contributions and benefits under
the public enployees' retirenent system of certain juvenile
detention enployees and juvenile correctional institution
enpl oyees. "

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 1, 2003



- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HCR 5

SHORT TITLE: LEG S. TASK FORCE ON DESI GN OF STATE SEAL
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) JOULE

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/ 03/ 03 0118 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 03/ 03 0118 (H CRA, STA, FIN

03/ 06/ 03 (H CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 06/ 03 (H Moved Qut of Conmttee

03/ 06/ 03 (H M NUTE( CRA)

03/07/ 03 0461 (H CRA RPT 5DP 1AM

03/07/ 03 0461 (H DP: ANDERSON, WOLF, KOOKESH,
Cl SSNA,

03/07/ 03 0461 (H MORGAN, AM  SAMUELS

03/07/ 03 0461 (H FN1: (LEG

03/ 07/ 03 0477 (H COSPONSOR('S): ANDERSON

03/ 27/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

03/ 27/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 01/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 134

SHORT TI TLE: CORRECTI ONAL FACI LI TY EXPANSI ON
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) STOLTZE

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/ 26/ 03 0306 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 26/ 03 0306 (H STA, FIN

03/ 13/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

03/ 13/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 01/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

BILL: HB 161

SHORT TI TLE: CORRECTI ONAL | NDUSTRI ES PROGRAM EXPENSES
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST CF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

03/ 05/ 03 0431 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 05/ 03 0431 (H STA, FIN

03/ 05/ 03 0432 (H FN1: (COR)

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 1, 2003



03/ 05/ 03 0432 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER
03/11/03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
03/ 11/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 01/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

BILL: HB 183
SHORT TI TLE: PERS BENEFI TS FOR JWV | NSTI' T EMPLOYEES
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) WEYHRAUCH

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

03/ 10/ 03 0491 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 10/ 03 0491 (H STA, FIN

04/ 01/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE REGA E JOULE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HCR 5.

JOHN GREELY, Staff

to Representative Reggie Joule

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during the hearing on
HCR 5.

REPRESENTATI VE Bl LL STOLTZE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 134.

PORTI A PARKER, Deputy Conm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner - Juneau

Departnent of Corrections

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during the hearing on
HB 134.

JERRY BURNETT, Director

Adm ni strative Services

Department of Corrections

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during the hearing on
HB 134; presented HB 161.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 1, 2003



DEVON M TCHELL, Debt Manager

Treasury Division

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 134, discussed
issues relating to the state's credit and revenue bonds with the
muni ci palities and answered questions.

JOHN DUFFY, Manager

Mat anuska- Susi t na Bor ough

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the WMatanuska-
Susi tna Borough in support of HB 134.

LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff

to Representative Bruce Weyhrauch

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Introduced HB 183 on behalf of
Represent ati ve Weyhrauch, sponsor.

GQUY BELL, Director

Division of Retirenment & Benefits

Department of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding retirenent
systens and addressed the fiscal note during the hearing on
HB 183.

BERNARD GATEWOCD

Al aska Juvenile Correctional Oficers Association (AJCOA)
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 183, asked that
juvenile correctional officers be included in the 20-year
retiremnent.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-34, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:01 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seaton, and Wyhrauch were present at the <call to order.
Representatives Lynn and Berkowtz arrived as the neeting was in
progr ess.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 1, 2003



HCR 5-LEG S. TASK FORCE ON DESI GN OF STATE SEAL

Number 0139

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 5, Establishing a task force to
make reconmendations regarding a new design for the official
seal of the State of Al aska.

Number 0163

REPRESENTATI VE REGE E JOULE, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
of HCR 5, gave a PowerPoint presentation. Saying there is no
synbol of Alaska older than the state seal, he offered his
belief that it is tinme to nodernize it. Thus HCR 5 would create
a task force of eight citizens to provide for a focal point of
public involvenent in designing a new seal. After the task
force reports back to the legislature in January [2004], the
| egi slature will decide whether to adopt the new design and
conmi ssi on the engraver.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE surm sed that nost Al askans probably don't
realize the current seal is the second one to represent the
government of Al aska. In 1885 the first appointed governor,
John Kinkead, designed a seal for the mlitary district of
Al aska; in use approximately 25 years, it depicted the northern
lights, icebergs, and "an Al aska Native or two." He said the
only place he knows of where the district seal is still in use
is on the mantel of the fireplace of the governor's house, where
it was uncovered from under nmany |ayers of paint when the house
was restored in the 1980s.

Nunmber 0366

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE said then-CGovernor Walter Cark decided in
1910 that the district seal was inappropriate for severa
reasons, including its depiction of icebergs, northern lights,
and Natives. Governor Clark hired a man to draw a rough sketch
to include nore nodern devel opnents in Al aska; the result is the
design that was sent to Washington, D.C, for approval in 1910.
Around that tine, however, soneone in the Department of the
Interior comm ssioned a nore refined drawing and sent that back
to Alaska. Governor Cark then conm ssioned an engraver to cast
the new seal, and it was delivered to the Secretary of Al aska on
February 25, 1911. |In 1913, the seal was changed again when the
word "district® was changed to "territory." He said, "At

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 1, 2003



statehood, this seal became the official state seal and renmmi ned
so as part of the statutes.™

Number 0518

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE referred to an article in the Apri

editi
seal .

on of the Al aska-Yukon WMagazine that announced the
It read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

The Territory of Alaska will not permt any one to
forget that developnent and industrial progress are
its chief concern. Not even w |l public docunents,

bearing the signature of the territorial chi ef
executive, be permtted [any] longer to convey, to
those who take note of them the ancient conception of
the country as a land of Arctic tenperature and the
hone of an unique race of aborigines. Gov. Walter E
Clark has had prepared a new official seal for the

Territory that wll typify nodern Alaska, as he
conceives it. While the general design of the old
seal is retained in the new, the whole effect has been
to enphasize the inportant i ndustries  of t he

Territory, and to present them on the whole according
to their relative inportance. The center of the sea
shows a range of nmountains in the distance, above
which appears the rising sun, typifying in this
i nstance the dawn of the commercial and industrial era
i n Al aska.

In the mddle distance on the left is a large ore mll
and a wharf, with a train of ore cars and a spur track
| eading toward the mill. In the harbor adjacent is a
| arge steanship, typifying comrerce, and in another
part of the harbor is a fishing vessel, representing
one of the great industries. The forests, also,
appear in the mddle distance on the left to represent
the lunber industry and resources; and there is a
harvest scene to typify agriculture.

Around the circunference of the seal appear the words:
"The Seal of the District of Alaska," the two |ines of
whi ch are separated on one side by salnon and on the
other side by a fur seal in place of the conventional
stars that are usually enployed for this purpose.

1911

new

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE said those words from 1911 explain why the
official seal of Al aska |ooks the way it does. However, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 1, 2003



is a far different place today, which leads to the question of

whether its seal should reflect those changes. For exanple, in
1910 Anchorage did not exist, and the state has outgrown several
i ndustries and [devel oped new ones]. For exanple, do urban

Al aska and the oil and gas industry belong on the state seal?
And is the horse and plow the best representation of agriculture
in Al aska? Representative Joule noted that in 1910 [half] the
popul ati on of Al aska was Native, and yet any depiction of Al aska
Natives was dropped from the seal by CGovernor C ark. He added,
"We have tinme to fix that om ssion."

Number 0760

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE said in 1885 and 1910, the idea of public
involvenent in designing a seal was not considered. The
| egislature can fix that oversight and provide a valuable
| earni ng experience for Alaskan residents. He said HCR 5 "asks
all of us to use our inmaginations.” Sayi ng Governor C ark had

| ooked to the future, Representative Joule asked that [the
| egi sl ature] do the sanme now by asking what synbols m ght have
currency with residents of Al aska 100 hundred years from now.

Nunber 0821

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE showed the commttee sone other state
| ogos, included in the handout of the PowerPoint presentation

including an Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane logo in use from
1962 wuntil 1977, and the ensuing black-and-white |ogo that
dropped the totem pole design. He noted that the design changed
again in 2001, when color was added and the lines were altered.
He al so showed the commttee the | ogo used by the Departnent of
Health & Social Services (DHSS), which was comm ssioned in the
early 1990s after extensive public invol venent. In response to
a question by Chair Weyhr auch, he confirned that t he
conmm ssioner of the DHSS was the one whose idea it was to [have
a seal designed with public involvenent].

Number 0925

JOHN GREELY, Staff to Representative Reggie Joule, Al aska State
Legislature, in response to followup questions by Chair
Weyhrauch, offered to find out the history behind [the DHSS
seal]. He explained that the imges discussed [on pages 3 and 4
of the PowerPoi nt handout] are exanples of state synbols.

Nunber 1017

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 1, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE JOULE referred to the state seals of Hawaii,
Mont ana, and |daho [page 5 of the PowerPoint handout]. He noted
that Hawaii's seal was adopted at statehood; an individua
changed the Mntana seal wthout any regard to the thoughts of
the legislature; and the Idaho seal was the only official seal
designed by a wonan, Emma Edwards G een, who took part in a
contest sponsored by the Ildaho |Ilegislature shortly after
statehood in 1890 and won a $100 prize. In 1957, he noted, the
| daho | egislature updated the seal by adding synbols of the
state's main industries: mning, agriculture, and forestry.
Representative Joule said [HCR 5] would seek out public
i nvol venent from people of all ages.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE referred to the fiscal note of [$53,000].
He nmentioned a letter to the First Al askans Institute requesting
a partnership in getting this funded to get it underway. Noting
that the House Community and Regional Affairs Standing Commttee
had suggested seeking a partnership, he indicated he'd asked
menbers of that commttee to forward names of potential donors
with regard to underwiting the cost.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if a decision of "no change" is a
potential outcome [of the task force].

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE answered that it's possible, but he doubts

it would happen. He said aviation is a huge part of Alaska's
hi story. Referring to the omssion of [synbols] of Al aska
Natives, he listed the follow ng groups: | nupi at, Yupik,

At habascan, Tlingit, Haida, Tsinshian, and Aleut. He asked, "Is
there one that would capture themall ?"

Nunber 1478

MR, GREELY nentioned suggestions over the years regarding room
on the rim of the seal and allowing [design features] to be
added w thout changing the [existing design] of the seal. He
indicated there are different ways of approaching a new design
and said it will be interesting to see what the public does if
it has a chance to weigh in.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked how the House Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Commttee neeting went during its hearing on
HCR 5 and whet her anyone had testified on the issue.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE answered no. He nentioned a letter of
support fromthe Heritage Foundati on in Anchorage.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 1, 2003



Nunmber 1560

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked Representative Seaton for his comments as
cosponsor of the resolution.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the fiscal note will be taken up in
the House Finance Committee. He said he thinks public
i nvol venent and bringing in the history of and foresight for the
State of Alaska are good things. He |ikened [the designing of
the state seal] to that for the state fl ag.

Number 1600

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report HCR 5 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not e. There being no objection, HCR 5 was reported from the
House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

HB 134- CORRECTI ONAL FACI LI TY EXPANSI ON

[ Cont ai ns di scussi on of SSHB 55]

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 134, "An Act authorizing the Departnent of
Corrections to enter into agreenments with nunicipalities for new
or expanded public correctional facilities in the Fairbanks
North Star Borough, the Matanuska-Susitna Borough, Bethel, and
the Municipality of Anchorage.”

Nunmber 1683

REPRESENTATI VE BILL STOLTZE, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
of HB 134, told the commttee the unfortunate reality Al aska
faces is the need for nore prison beds. [ The | egislature] has
different options for how to solve this need. He credited
Senat or Lyda Green for her work on the Senate side on the issue.
He remarked, "I'm pushing the bill on this side to assist her
effort and [have] becone attached to it since then."

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said the bill covers expansion [of prison
beds] in several areas of +the state, including Anchorage,
Fai r banks, Bethel, and the Matanuska-Susitna area, which wll
have the mmj or expansion. Probably receiving the nost attention
will be the Sutton expansion, he predicted, saying a facility
there is the right facility in the right place, and is supported
by the public. He said he thinks that through the healthy
process of conpetition with the private prison industry, the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 1, 2003



[ Department of Corrections (DOC)] has done a good job of
reducing costs and putting together a good proposal, including
docunentation of how it can be acconplished.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE noted what the nunber of beds for each
facility would be as follows: Sutton, 1,250; Anchorage, 200;
Fai r banks, 80; and Bethel, 120. The spaces added in Anchorage
would be |eased by the federal governnent, by U S. Marshals

That would be federal noney providing Al askan jobs, he added,
and woul d make the current Anchorage facility nore efficient.

Nunber 1874

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE referred to a color-copy handout
[conpil ed by DOC]; the first page shows where the facilities are
| ocat ed. He pointed to the "Inmate Popul ation Statistics"” [top
of page 2], which shows that by the year 2007, the total will be
5,500. Referring to [the "Institution Activity 1997-2002" chart
on the bottom of page 2], which shows adm ssions, transfers, and
the average daily count, he indicated that is what the debate
centers around wth regard to private-versus-public prison

initiatives. He clarified that the conpetition is in regard to
housi ng peopl e. He conplinmented DOC for lowering costs in
construction, which lowers the fiscal note. He nentioned a

proposed conm ttee substitute (CS) [unspecified version].

Number 2080

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said the options regarding prisons are as
fol |l ows: SSHB 55, which would authorize the construction of a
private prison in Wittier; HB 134, the bill now being presented
by Representative Stoltze, supporting expansion of existing
facilities; and "the do-nothing option." He comented that
there is a lot of confusing information on the issue, including
sone scare tactics that are not credible. He said one thing

that isn't clear to himis the economc inpact on the state. He
requested from Representative Hawker [one of tw sponsors of
SSHB 55] and Representative Stoltze a holistic view of how all
the options overlay, in order for the commttee to decide the
best policy option for the state to consider.

REPRESENTATI VE  STOLTZE opined that those are legitinmate
concerns.

Nunber 2207

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 1, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said he has visited jails, and each roomis

no nore than 8 by 12 feet. He noted that the plans show a cost
of $110,000, $135,000, and $155,000 per bed. Saying it doesn't
take that nuch concrete to build a room He added, "I don't
know, given out particular financial circunstance, that we need
to be building the Taj Mahal to house prisoners.” He said he is
unconfortable wth this ki nd of expense. He asked

Representative Stoltze to comment.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE responded that he knows that the private
sector has expensive costs, as well. He deferred further
coment to the deputy comm ssioner of DOC

Number 2355

PORTI A PARKER, Deputy Commi ssioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner -
Juneau, noted that the $155,000 is for the Bethel expansion
proj ect. She explained that the cost of doing construction in
that rural area is higher. The Anchorage extension wll be
federally funded; it won't affect the general fund or the fiscal
not e. The Fairbanks facility is nore expensive at $135, 000.
She explained that the per-bed costs include the cost of the
entire facility. In response to a question by Chair Wyhrauch

she clarified that the per-bed cost covers the cost of the
construction only for the entire facility, not the operating
costs, for exanple.

Number 2434

JERRY BURNETT, Director, Adm nistrative Services, Departnent of
Corrections, added that the per-bed cost also includes the cost
of design, utilities, and new fencing - "all the soft and hard
costs of construction.™

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH surm sed, "To the turnkey."

MR. BURNETT concurred. He commented that the plan is simlar to
one used in other places in the U S

Nunber 2467

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked M. Burnett if he would provide the
commttee with a square-foot cost.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if the standard for the industry is per
square-foot or per bed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 1, 2003



M5. PARKER answer ed bot h.
Number 2500

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked for conparisons of construction
costs in Alaska with the follow ng: elsewhere in the country, a
private office building in Anchorage, and sone of the University
constructi on.

MR. BURNETT said the cost of construction is just over $400 per
square foot.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN remarked that a decent residential hone in
Anchorage, not including the garage, costs about $100 per square
foot.

MR. BURNETT offered to produce the nunbers that Representative
Ber kowi tz had previously requested. He noted that the plan for
Al aska was based upon a 35 percent higher cost than simlar
projects built in the Lower 48.

Nunmber 2586

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if it is correct to assune that a policy
issue inplicit in [HB 134] is that a larger correctional
facility is much nore economc than building smaller facilities
in many parts of the state.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE answered in the affirmative. He noted
that the state already owns the land and that the plans are "in
a site that's not going to be contentious."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ commented that "class A" office space
costs $200 to $300 per square foot to construct. He asked what
added elenents in a prison would cause the costs to go up.

MR. BURNETT replied that there are a nunber of specialized
materials used in a prison facility such as automatic doors,
special prison toilets and showers, hardware that has to be very
durabl e, and solid concrete walls versus sheetrock, for exanple.

Number 2665
CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noted that a policy question which the
| egi sl ature nmust address is whether to house prisoners in Al aska

or Qutside. He questioned at what point "critical mass" is
reached and a deci sion nust be nade.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 1, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE remarked that the Arizona facility seens

to have value as an "escape valve" now, however, it can't neet
Al aska's needs regarding bookings. He said nuch shorter-term
[inmates] are being sent to the Arizona facility. Predicting

that it won't be nmuch longer before that facility won't be able
to meet Alaska's needs, he nentioned the added cost of
transferring prisoners back and forth.

Nunber 2743

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said one problem he has always had
about sending prisoners Qutside is that it nmeans exporting
capital; dollars are not circulating within the econony. He
asked if any analysis has been done regarding the cost to the
state's econony because of the Arizona facility when the
"multiplier effect” is included.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE answered, "I don't know that nunber. I
know the one on the face is $20 mllion, and that certainly
multiplies that." He opined that there's a point at which the

value of the state's having its own institutions nust be
consi der ed.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ said that's what he was suggesting.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH reiterated that the policy decision is in regard
to the econonmc benefit to the state of building a prison in
Al aska, whether it's public or private.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said he wants to see the jobs in the
state. He posited that it is probably better in the long term
for the state to own its own facility

Nunber 2851

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said the state might be putting $20
mllion into Arizona right now, however, if the investnent were
put into Alaska - even if [running its own prison] was, on the
surface, nore expensive - the state would be getting sone kind
of return, based on property and corporate taxes and the benefit
to the municipalities. He asked that those calculations be
included in the analysis he'd requested previously.

Nunber 2881

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 1, 2003



MR. BURNETT referred to an econom c inpact assessnent [included
in the conmttee packet] that was prepared for the Matanuska-
Susi t na Borough by Northern Econom cs I nc.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE renarked that he has tried not to dwell
on things that benefit the Mitanuska-Susitna ("Mat-Su") Borough,;
he opined that the issue is a |arger, statew de concern.

Nunber 2910

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Representative Stoltze, "Are you
i ncluding booking facilities in the Mat-Su at all, or is this
strictly older facilities?"

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE nentioned Mat-Su and said there is a pre-
trial facility not too far from there. He said, "The Anchorage
facility is the nore appropriate function for the Anchorage
area, and the Bethel facility also perforns that function." He
added that the Sutton facility is a longer-termfacility.

MR. BURNETT, in response to a request for clarification from
Representative Seaton, stated, "One thing that an Qutside
facility cannot economcally handle is short-term prisoners and
pre-sentence prisoners.”

TAPE 03-34, SIDE B
Number 2981

MR. BURNETT indicated transportation costs for sending prisoners
to an Qutside facility are greater than the savings from
[holding themin Alaskal]. He said he has been working on trying
to do an accurate analysis "to get a nunber which is the maxi num
at any point we could economically send out.” He nentioned sone
data-quality issues and specific sentence tines. He said
currently his best estimate is about 1,500 inmates who may neet
| ong enough sentence requirenents to send Qutside. He said sone

[inmates] have nental illness or other health or behavioral
reasons why they can't be sent. He noted that at sone point,
the state is spending nore noney to send [inmates] Qutside. He
added, "It would make little sense to send sonmeone to Arizona

for a 4-nonth sentence, and right now we've [been] sending
peopl e that have a 14-nonth sentence.”

M5. PARKER clarified that the state is getting to where it
doesn't have a lot of options to send additional inmates to
Arizona and still have it be cost-effective. She noted that an
effort is made to consolidate the nunmber of transports [for

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 1, 2003



pur poses of saving noney]. Regardi ng the Bethel and Fairbanks
expansi ons, she said, "Those are alnpbst 90 to 100 percent pre-
sent ence. " The prisoners being transported out of Bethel for
hearings in superior court or additional court appearances, for
exanpl e, have to be transported right back because they haven't
been sentenced yet.

Nunmber 2839

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked why the Anchorage facility, but not the
Bet hel facility, is federally funded.

M5. PARKER explained that the U 'S Marshals requested the
capacity in Anchorage, where nost of their federal detainees
are. She said [the state] has a contract [with the US.
Marshals] to supply 80 beds at a per-diem rate; however, that
takes up space in a state correctional facility. She noted that
the federal detainee nunber is expected to increase from 120 to
about 200, which is why [the U S. Marshals] are going through
the federal governnent to request additional funds to add on to
t he Anchorage jail.

Nunber 2789

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he has heard that the state transfers
[inmates wth] medical problems to Arizona when possible,
because it is |less expensive to treat them there. He inquired
about the distance to nedical facilities from Sutton, for
exanpl e, versus Anchorage.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE responded that the Sutton facility is
probably within 15 mnutes of the Palner facility for Valley
Hospital, where a $80-mllion to $90-million hospital expansion
i's underway. He noted that the other option [is the proposed
private prison facility] in Wittier, which is farther from
Anchorage and requires a trip fraught with nore potential del ays
than a trip on the expressway between Pal ner and Anchorage, or
from Sutton to downt own Pal ner

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said DOC has said its prisoner base is
[in] Anchorage; therefore, all the other |ocations would be away
from that base. He said he is trying to figure out the anmount

of tinme that wll be necessary to transfer [prisoners] for court
appear ances, for exanple. He said although he is not opposed to
this project, he is trying to look at the overall policy

regarding where the nmgjority of Alaska's prison housing shoul d

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- April 1, 2003



be sited. One consideration is this, he noted: that which is
econom cal to build may not be economical to operate.

Nunber 2620

MR. BURNETT rem nded Representative Seaton that the facility in
Sutton would primarily be used for long-term stable prisoners,
so the transportation in and out would be |ess frequent. He
also noted that it would be sited next to a nediumsecurity and
a mninmmsecurity facility; therefore, sone of the staff could
be used nutually. He noted that an Alaska State Trooper
attachnment and a court are in Palnmer, a few m nutes away.

Nunmber 2566

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he'd |like to see an anal ysis of where
the prison population is being generated and how nmany timnes
transports are necessary. He predicted that what nay happen,
because of the growh of the prison population, is that Al aska
may soon be sending [inmates] back to Arizona, and Al aska wl|l
be stuck wth the shorter-term prisoners who can't Dbe
transported back and forth from Ari zona.

Nunber 2433
REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked for clarification of the difference in
needs between pre-sentence and pre-trial prisoners as it

pertains to duration of tinme and the facility, for exanple.

MR. BURNETT responded that pre-trial [prisoners] are clearly
short-term but couldn't answer whether there is a difference in

the facility wuse between the two. He said pre-sentence
[prisoners] typically are still awaiting sentence after a
crimnal proceeding; that wait is usually short-term and | ong-
term custody has not yet been determ ned. In response to a
followup question by Representative Holm he explained that
pre-trial [prisoners] have a "higher need.” For exanple, he

noted that the people comng in are often unstable and a higher
security level is needed. Also, there are booki ng needs.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE offered his belief that nore attention is
given to a pre-trial [prisoner] than at any other |evel.

Number 2407

M5. PARKER remarked that there are prisoners in Anchorage and
Fai rbanks who are there for 16 to 18 nonths awaiting trial and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 1, 2003



sent enci ng. She added, "So, you try not to nove them because
you know we're going to have to nove themright back."

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE, based on the 15 "ride-alongs" that he

has done, said the higher level of staffing is necessary. He
expl ai ned, "These guys are drugged up or hopped up, and they
don't want to go in through that first |ocking door." He added

that he has seen sone "pretty wild and wooly scenes.”
Nunmber 2353

REPRESENTATIVE HOLM returned to the subject of cost of
construction. He asked, "Who's the fox that's watching the hen

house?" He opined that the State of Al aska has a tendency to
overbuild, that it has been give a lot of free license by
architects and engineers who get nore [nobney] the bigger the
structure is. He asked who the watchdog is for the people of
Al aska. He opined that the state needs to be building adequate
bui | di ngs, protecting its popul ati on, and i ncarcerating
appropriately; however, it doesn't need to be building the

finest facilities man can possibly build.
Number 2268

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH renarked that he knows inadequate building
nmet hods have resulted in the state's having infrastructure,
mai nt enance, and repair bills that don't get funded |ater on.
He said it's a conundrum

MR. BURNETT said any construction that the state does wll
involve a conpetitive bid situation. He noted that DOC cane up
with the $135,000 per-bed cost at its first consideration, based
on standard construction estimates and working wth [the
Departnent of Transportation & Public Safety (DOT&PF)]. He
referred to a blueprint [hanging on the wall] provided by one of
the Jlargest private prison conpanies, and he said [the
departnment] would like to find ways to build cheaper [than the
cost proposed for the plan in the blueprint].

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said that is the answer he wanted to hear.

MR. BURNETT said the departnment's facility person has been
tasked wth | ooking at better and cheaper ways to build.

M5. PARKER added, "And we've directed them not to go out and

redesign, [but] to look at what's working in other areas of the
country. This conmpany's also built for ... prisons and for

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 1, 2003



a lot of state facilities." She said the departnent doesn't
want anything above and beyond the absolute needs of the
facility, but is looking for a good facility at the |owest
possi bl e cost.

Nunber 2156

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said he is wlling to cut corners on
prisoner confort, but not on personnel safety.

Number 2138

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked what alternative to "hard beds”
the department may be exploring. For exanple, he listed the
fol | ow ng: ankl e bracelets, house arrests, "soft beds,"” and
"Nygren."

M5. PARKER responded that when the current admnistration cane
in, there were plans already in place for wusing electronic
noni t or i ng. She nmentioned a classification process whereby the
probation officer works wth the central classification to

determne the appropriate [conditions of release], including
electronic nmonitoring and being released into [conmmunity
residential care] (CRC) and halfway houses. She said the
departnment is inplenmenting that to the greatest extent it thinks
possible while still protecting the public.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked, "Did you tell ne what percentage
of prisoners are on this sort of alternative?"

M5. PARKER, with input from M. Burnett, provided the follow ng
estimates from | ast week: 168 on electronic nonitoring, 730 in
comunity residential care, and 4,000 on probation and parole.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that those nunbers are under
di rect supervision of the departnent. He asked what percentage
are in hard beds and what percentage aren't.

MR. BURNETT replied that of the people in direct supervision of
the departnent, less than half are in hard beds at this tine.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if the departnent has had
significant problens with those who aren't.

IVS. PARKER offered his understanding that Representati ve

Ber kowi t z was aski ng about those people who are considered to be
in the custody of the departnment, including those in electronic

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 1, 2003



nonitoring, CRCs, halfway houses, and institutions. She said,

"The percentage in our institutions would be much higher."” She
added, "Community residential centers - sane as a halfway
house. "

Number 1950

DEVON M TCHELL, Debt WManager, Treasury Division, Departnent of
Revenue, in response to a request by Chair Wyhrauch to describe
his job and how he can be helpful to the commttee on this

i ssue, revealed that he is currently working on the $461 nmillion
general obligation to the state that was authorized Novenber 5,
2002. Noting that the state bond committee is charged wth
nonitoring the state's credit, he said the issue presently being
di scussed by that commttee - in addition to other proposals to
buil d additional prison space - inpacts the state's credit. He
expl ai ned:
This particul ar pr oposal would have ... t hree

municipal entities issuing |ease revenue bonds that
woul d be backed by a revenue stream that would be
provi ded by the general fund of the state. And so, as
such, if you were a person interested in buying these
pi eces of paper, you're going to |look at where the
noney cones from follow it right back to the general
fund, and that's where |I would be of sone assistance

to the commttee, if you had questions on ... that
front.
CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked M. Mtchell if he has done any

conparative analysis regarding the state's indebtedness because
of its use of a private prison facility Qutside, or in regard to
the proposed private prison in \Wittier or the prison
construction proposed in HB 134.

MR. M TCHELL responded that the state has not incurred any debt
for the Arizona facility because it is contract-based. The two
proposal s presently in the legislature [HB 134 and SSHB 55] w ||

have fiscal inpact. He noted that there are sone constraints in
the legislation related to the private facility [SSHB 55] that
are of concern. First, there isn't a dollar anmount identified

for the capital portion of [SSHB 55]; thus there is a concern
that this leaves a ot of leeway for a city like Wittier to try
to interpret it. Also, [SSHB 55] has a mnimumrequired term on
the financing of 25 years, which also is a concern to the
depart nent .

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 1, 2003



MR. M TCHELL offered the background that the states in aggregate
are in a negative period right now regarding credit ratings.
Approximately half are |ooking at downgrades or have been
downgraded, he said, because there is an inbalance between
spending and revenues by about $100 billion across the states
due to a decline in the econony and the reliance of people on
capital gain receipts that have "gone away." He said, "The
State of Alaska, | believe, is quite fortunate to be able to
mai ntain our credit ratings with our upcomng sale.” He noted
that the State of Alaska is much nore stable; however, any
additional use of the state's credit needs to be carefully
consi der ed.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked, "Have you analyzed the nunbers
for the Arizona facility at all?"

MR. M TCHELL answer ed no.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH said he doesn't know if anyone present has done
so, but that information is available in the SSHB 55 file.

Number 1750

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ nentioned Arizona and $20 mllion. He
indicated that [the State of Alaska] is paying for the profits,
as well as the Arizona taxes. He nentioned [paying] "above and
beyond the operating costs.” He added, "And that nunber, to ne,
woul d be interesting.”

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH told M. Mtchell it is good to know he is
avai |l abl e as a resource.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON nentioned state bonds and revenue bonds as
the two ways of financing a facility. He asked, "Is your
analysis that if an equal anmount was spent on these, is there a
difference in the inpact upon the state's bond rating or on its
credit rating fromthose two different sources?”

MR. M TCHELL asked whether Representative Seaton was referring
to the two proposals before the | egislature.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON answered yes. He added, "To nake it easy,
just think of them as being the identical anount of noney, if we
don't have the anount specified in the Wittier one. ... Wat
l"'m trying to do is figure out if ... you think that there's
going to be a different influence from revenue bonds with the
municipalities, or state bond indebtedness.™

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 1, 2003



MR. M TCHELL responded that he believes the current proposals
have a fairly simlar financing nechanism it would either be
VWhittier with a private prison issuing debt or, "with this bill,

the other nunicipalities.” He said:

If your question is, wuld |I ... personally be nore
confortable if it was the State of Al aska issuing the
debt, I'd say yes, because it's the State of Al aska's
credit and, as such, who knows it better? A
municipality doesn't know the State of Al aska |ike the
State of Alaska knows the State of Al aska. The
readi ng anal ysts that are going to look at the credit
are the folks that | deal with on a fairly regular
basi s.

If your question was, is there a cost difference in
the credit prospectus, | think this is going to be
state supported obligation, and so that nmneans that
each year the legislature's going to cone in and say,
"Are we going to appropriate noney to continue to have
that building in wherever to house prisoners" -
recognizing that there's sone additional things that
m ght happen to you besides losing that prison if you
fail to appropriate. So there is an essentiality
issue and an ability to use your facility, and so
that's a consideration when these fol ks are | ooking at
this. Qobvi ously, the case has been nade that we have

a clear need for ... prison space in the state of
Al aska. And so, | think there is an essentiality
ot herw se.

Number 1540

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked, if there were two set of bonds
bei ng issued, whether one of those two sources would have a
| ower interest rate.

MR MTCHELL replied that he'd tend to argue that because of
nanme recognition, a State of Alaska issuance would produce a
| ower interest rate than a City of Wiittier issuance would, even
though the credit is fundanentally the sane. He added, "It
woul d be increnental ."

Nunber 1470

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 1, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if there is a difference between
rates, generally, on revenue versus general obligation bonds.

MR. M TCHELL answered yes. He explained that the state's
general obligation bond rating is "Aa-Aa2." He added:
The type of ratings that we ... achieve with state-
supported obligations, |ike what's being considered,

are in the Al, "A-plus" category. And so there's an
addi tional cost, which, depending on the market you're
in, would range -- ... well, 20 to 25 basis points
woul d be the additional cost of not putting your full
faith and credit on the line.

Nunber 1410

JOHN DUFFY, Manager, WMatanuska-Susitna Borough, thanked the
commttee for addressing overcrowded prisons and Representative
Stoltze for sponsoring HB 134. He said the Matanuska-Susitna
Borough, the cities of Palnmer and Wasilla, and their | ocal
chanbers of commerce support HB 134. He explained that the
bor ough believes investing in expansion of its existing publicly
owned and operated facilities is the npbst appropriate approach
to relieve overcrowding of those facilities. He said HB 134
will allow prisoners to be closer to their famlies and support
network, thereby increasing the chances of rehabilitation;
Al askans  wil | benefit from increased jobs and business
opportunities, state funds wll be invested in Alaskan
comunities, and a multiplier effect fromthese investnents wl|
allow those comunities to develop their infrastructure when
it's based on | ocal econom es.

MR. DUFFY returned to the econonmi c inpact assessnent, page 3-3,
and asked nenbers to look at tables [3-1 and 3-2] at their
| ei sure. He remarked, "W identified the economc inpact wth
each facility, as well as the entire econom c inpact throughout
the state.” He gave exanples showi ng that approximtely $250
mllion would be generated during the construction phase, as
well as $73 million generated in sales and services throughout
the state during the operation phase.

Nunber 1253
MR. DUFFY reported that the borough has adequate health care
facilities. He reiterated Representative Stoltze's earlier

mention of an upcom ng expansion of a [hospital] facility by
building a 76-bed facility, with the ability to expand to 130

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 1, 2003



beds. He said there is a district court facility in Palnmer, as
wel | as other support systens near the Sutton facility. [HB 134
was hel d over.]

HB 161- CORRECTI ONAL | NDUSTRI ES PROGRAM EXPENSES

Nunber 1136

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 161, "An  Act allowing expenses of the
correctional industries program that my be financed from the
correctional industries fund to include the salaries and

benefits of state enpl oyees."”
Number 1099

JERRY BURNETT, Director, Adm nistrative Services, Departnent of
Corrections (DOC), presented HB 161, saying it is a sinple bill
that allows for the correctional industry's product revenues to
pay for state enployees' salaries. Current state statute allows
for the correctional industry's revenues to pay for all other

adm nistrative costs of the program He revealed that state
enpl oyees' salaries in "this programt are approximately $960, 000
in fiscal year (FY 04) general fund revenues. He said the

adm nistration would like the ability to use the revenues from
the correctional industry's product sales to pay for those state
enpl oyees' salaries, thus reducing the general-fund cost of the
program

MR. BURNETT noted that the correctional industry has eight
"product service" enterprises operating now Juneau Commerci a
Laundry, Fai rbanks Garnent/Flat Goods Shop, Kenai Ofice
Furniture Systens Plant, Eagle R ver Garnent Shop, Kenai Metals
Plant, Seward Wod Furniture Plant, Palner Auto Body Shop, and
Juneau Staph Guard [Hospital Laundry]. He said 14 state
enpl oyee product managers work for DOC in those industries, and
approximately $4.1 mnmillion in product revenues is generated

annually. In response to a question by Chair Wyhrauch, he said
he guesses that [the Juneau Staph Guard Hospital Laundry] is in
cooperative with Alaska Laundry; it provides sterile laundry

services to the hospital and nedical clinics.
Nunmber 0843

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noted that [page 1, beginning on line 10] would
amend [ AS 33.32.020(a)] as follows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- April 1, 2003



The conmm ssioner of corrections shall prepare a report
annually on all activities and balances of the fund
and notify the legislature that the report s
avai | abl e.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if the report for 2003 has been prepared
yet .

MR. BURNETT replied that he hasn't seen it and doesn't know the

st at us. In further response, he said it wuld be a
comuni cation from the comm ssioner. He added that the
information is in [the departnent's] detail ed budget docunents,
["Conponent: Correctional Industries Product Cost," included in
the comm ttee packet]. He also confirnmed that [the information
in the budget docunent s] is nore or |l ess where the

commi ssioner's report is derived from
Nunmber 0745

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ stated his wunderstanding that prison
i ndustries provide goods and services to the state. He asked,
"Shouldn't that be reflected somewhere in the fiscal note?"

MR. BURNETT answered that it would only be reflected in the
fiscal note if there were a change in prices or cost to the
state as a result of HB 161. He said that isn't the intent. In
further response, he said there is net incone;, there is
approxi mately $300,000 in the product cost fund available at the
end of this fiscal year.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked how nuch furniture is sold [that
is made by the prison industry], for exanple, and what the
equi val ent commerci al cost woul d be.

MR. BURNETT said he didn't know, but offered to provide that
i nformation. He conveyed his belief that the industry's prices
are conpetitive at this point. He remarked, "W need to work on
our marketing and get [the product] out.” He added that there
is the potential for other custoners besides the state.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ related his understanding that [the
i ndustry can sell to] the foll ow ng: an agency of the federal

governnment, a political subdivision of the state, other states
or their political subdivisions, and nonprofit organi zations.

Nunmber 0657

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 1, 2003



MR. BURNETT said, "W are also allowed to sell to ... private
i ndi viduals [and] private conpanies if we are not conpeting with
private industry in that venture."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ responded, "That being the case, |'m
curious why the approach of the adm nistration here is so sudden
- why there's not a transition provided for in this

| egi sl ation.”

MR. BURNETT replied that the fiscal policy driving [the bill] is
that general fund spending needs to be reduced. He said the
departnment believes there are significant opportunities to
i ncrease revenues wWithin this conponent.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked how the departnent plans to do
that when it gets rid off the 14 people who are currently
managi ng t he program

MR.  BURNETT answered that the fiscal note shows that the
departnment would be replacing the noney and paying the people
with product revenues, rather than getting rid of the 14 people.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ responded as fol | ows:

I'ma little confused. The current cost is $960, 000.
You' re having $150,000 coming in. It would seem to
me, when [there is] $810,000 in debts, that you' re not
going to be able to afford all the people [who] are
currently in the program |If you can't pay people who
are in the program how are you going to continue to
expand the program and market it?

Number 0548

M. BURNETT answered that Representative Berkowitz was making
sone assunptions that aren't necessarily correct. One is in
regard to the $150,000. He nentioned $300,000 in seed noney to
start paying people. He added, "So we would need to devel op
addi tional revenues beyond the current net revenues, sonewhere
in the nei ghborhood of $660,000, to ... retain all 14 of these

people for this year."
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ asked if [DOC] has a plan to do that.
MR. BURNETT said he isn't personally in charge of this program

but believes the conm ssioner has been working wth "sone
entities. He added, "W are working on that very plan.” In

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- April 1, 2003



further response, M. Burnett confirned that the plan isn't
conpl ete yet.

Nunber 0457

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said it seens one reasons for having
this program - which is on thin ice with lack of a plan at this
point - is for the rehabilitation of prisoners. He comrent ed,
"I was wondering what plans the admnistration has, the
departnent has, to continue the rehabilitation efforts at the
eight correctional industries' product service enterprises -
what you wll do to facilitate rehabilitation, which is a
constitutional mandate.”

MR. BURNETT related his understanding that, at this point, there
is no intent to elimnate any of these prograns specifically;
therefore, he believes the prograns would continue to the extent
possi bl e. He noted that the conm ssioner has been in contact
with the Departnent of Labor & Workforce Devel opment (DLWD) and
has been working with them regarding job rehabilitation, which

is also in the Alaska correctional industry statute. He
mentioned job-training prograns and said, "So we would be
actively | ooki ng for any opportunities to conti nue

rehabilitation."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if the budget nakes provision for
expendi ture of the $300,000 that's in reserves.

MR. BURNETT answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ asked what would happen if that
[ $300, 000] wer e exhaust ed.

MR. BURNETT reiterated that the departnent intends to do
everything possible to increase product revenues. Barring that,
he said, it wwuld have to look at other alternatives to
provi di ng the service.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked when the plan would be ready. He

requested that M. Burnett nake it available to the commttee at
t hat point.

MR. BURNETT said, "To the extent that that plan becones

avai lable, | see no reason why we couldn't provide it to you."
He noted that the nmanager of the correctional industries is
planning to retire this nonth; therefore, recruiting wll begin
for a new nanager. He said part of the previously discussed

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 1, 2003



plan will "conme with the new correctional industries manager."
In response to a comment by Chair Wyhrauch, he noted that the
commi ssioner who is working on sone of the information that the
commttee has asked to receive is presently out of town.

Nunber 0177

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked M. Burnett to explain the purpose of
correctional industries.

MR. BURNETT defined correctional industries as "a mx of job
training and activities for inmates in the correctiona
institutions.™ He explained that [the inmates] produce goods

and services that are intended to "pay for thenselves,” and they
achieve sonme job skills that hopefully are marketable upon their
rel ease. He noted also that the jobs keep the inmates busy, and
a busy inmte is "better” to keep track of than those who are
idle.

Nunmber 0092

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM referred to the page marked "78" in the
previously indicated "Correctional I ndustries Product Cost"
handout [the "Conponent Financial Summary" page]. He asked if
he interpreted correctly that it shows a budget conmponent of
over $4 mllion.

MR. BURNETT said that is correct. He explained that this anmount

woul d be the total program [cost] in FY 04. In response to a
followup question, he noted that the sales this year were
approxi mately $150,000 nore than the costs - "the prograns, |ess

the state enpl oyees, which are not paid for."

TAPE 03-35, SIDE A
Number 0001

MR, BURNETT, in response to additional followup questions,
clarified that the enployees presently aren't paid for by
product revenues, but are paid for by general fund dollars.
They are listed under "professional industries admnistration.”
He said, "W would like to use product cost revenues to pay the
state enpl oyees who manage the program"”

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noted that there is only $150,000 nore than
production costs; therefore, there is a shortfall.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- April 1, 2003



MR. BURNETT [agreed that there is a shortfall] w thout producing
additional revenues; in order to continue the prograns, DOC
woul d have to produce additional product revenue. In further
response, he said DOC needs to have the authorization [from the
| egislature] to pay its state enployee product managers from
[ product revenues] so that when the departnent is able to
produce additional revenues, it can use that noney rather than
general fund noney to pay those state enpl oyees.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM surm sed, "Then this is a precursor to being
able to function this way."

MR. BURNETT said, "Right. W want to function as a full
enterprise fund so that it pays all its own costs.”

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM sai d he agrees with that.
Number 0200

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he has no problenms wth the
aut horization to use excess funds to pay salaries and benefits;
however, if the outconme of adopting HB 161 might be that if the
excess revenues are not sufficient, the managers and, therefore,
the program - which is an integral part of rehabilitating the
people in the states prisons - are elimnated, then he would be
opposed to it. He said it is inportant to renenber that the
people in prison wll be back out on the street, and
rehabilitation is [an inportant] goal.

Nunber 0374

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH related his wunderstanding that it isn't the
intent of those introducing the bill to do away wth the
prograns if there are no funds; rather, it is to allow the

flexibility to pay salaries and benefits of state enpl oyees from
proceeds of the fund.

MR. BURNETT concurr ed.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if it would be all right wth the
adm nistration if the commttee included a letter with the bil
[stating the sentinents that have been di scussed].

MR. BURNETT responded, "I can't speak to that at this point."

Nunber 0428

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- April 1, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he would like the admnistration to
[respond] to the commttee regarding whether they would receive
and agree with a letter [of intent] from the conmttee. He
said, "I think that's a fundanental policy issue that we need to
decide here. And if we are m sunderstanding or m scommrunicati ng
with the adm nistration on the outcone of this program | need
that before | could go forward.” [HB 161 was held over.]

The commttee took an at-ease from9:43 a.m to 9:44 a.m

HB 183- PERS BENEFI TS FOR JWV I NSTI T EMPLOYEES

Number 0525

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the l|ast order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 183, "An Act relating to retirenent contributions
and benefits under the public enployees' retirenment system of
certain juvenile detention enployees and juvenile correctional
institution enpl oyees.™

Number 0610

LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff to Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Al aska
State Legislature, introduced HB 183 on behal f of Representative

Weyhr auch, sponsor. She noted that Alaska's current statutes
provide that peace officers and fire fighters are entitled to a
20- year retirement. However, juvenile justice officers
participate in a 30-year retirement system The proposed

| egislation would add them to the statute governing the
retirement system of peace officers and fire fighters.
Ms. Sylvester said it is the belief of the sponsor and [those in
the juvenile justice systen] that this group was erroneously
left out of the 20-year retirenent system and it is tinme to
correct the inequity.

MS. SYLVESTER said the Division of Juvenile Justice provides the
people of the state with a wde range of restorative justice
services in which juvenile offenders are held accountable.
Furthernore, they work to repair the harm to those inpacted by
their crimes, and they provide offenders and their famlies with
opportunities to develop new skills in order to be productive,
contributing nenbers of society. Ms. Sylvester noted that over
the past several years, the legislature has funded construction
and operation of new juvenile <correctional facilities, in
support of the public safety conponent of the division's
restorative justice mssion. However, buildings in and of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- April 1, 2003



thenselves don't make a community safer; rather, it is the
peopl e who staff these facilities. She explained:

This staff is charged with guarding, controlling, and
confronting the nost hardened juvenile offenders. The
enpl oyees who work with juvenile delingquents face the
sane dangers and hazards as adult correctional

of ficers. The job title of these people, ... "youth
counselors,"” [belies] what actually goes on in their
field. The public mstakenly believes that these

people see kids in offices by appointnent to counsel
t hem And nothing could be further from the truth
These workers provide 24-hour correctional care and
custody related to the incarceration of people against
their wll.

Number 0783
MS. SYLVESTER expl ai ned the duties of juvenile officers:

Each day the youth counselors are involved in a chain
of custody with other |aw enforcenent personnel across
the state. These kids are brought to the facilities
in handcuffs in the back of police cars; they've been
arrested for a crine. They arrive at the facilities
in an angry, agitated, assaultive state. Otentines
they are violent or intoxicated. The officers turning
these youths over to the youth counselors are given

body arnor, guns, and chem cal deterrents in order
to deal with the offenders. Youth counselors are not
given any of these things; they use their skill and
their training and the relationships that they've
formed with the kids, in order to conduct their duty
safely.

These counselors also exchange custody of mnors
between facilities. They accept custody from juvenile
probation officers out in the field who are in a 20-
year retirenent systenm oftentines, they assist in
those arrests, as juvenile probation officers request
their assistance. Sone of these [youth] offenders are
charged with very serious and violent crines, and they

spend between 30 and ... 90 days inside the detention
facilities before being transferred to an adult
facility.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- April 1, 2003



In addition to custody transfer, sonme of the kids stay

in the facilities until they're 20 years old. In that
situation, the youth counselors are actually dealing
with housing adults in their facilities. Al so, as

mandat ed by statute, youth counsel ors nake independent
arrests in the community in pursuit of the juveniles
that have absconded from the facilities or from an
escort to a nedical or service transport.

The duties of the youth counselor position requires

solid training and excellent skill developnent in
handling resistive clients. They have to have a peak
mental and physical condition; ... these are

qualities that tend to wane as we age. ... These are
the exact reasons why the State of [Alaska] made a
policy decision ... [regarding] the fire fighters and

police officers to give them an opportunity to retire
early, because these jobs are very dangerous and
hazardous, and they have a short |Iifespan. And it's
not the sanme type of a deal as sitting at a desk and
wor ki ng with your brain.

Nunmber 1000

GUY BELL, Director, Division of Ret i r ement & Benefits,
Departnent of Admnistration, testified that HB 183 would
convert juvenile correctional officers from the "30-and-out"
system to the "20-and-out"” retirenment system presently offered
to police officers and fire fighters. It would grant that
service retroactive to each individual's date of hire as a
juvenile correctional officer, he noted, by allowng himher to
claim that service but not pay the full actuarial cost. He
stated, "The difference in what they would have contri buted

as peace officers, versus other enployees, is required of them
but that doesn't cover the full cost to the retirenent system of
maki ng this conversion.”

MR. BELL turned to the fiscal note, which he described as self-

expl anat ory. He said it adds an annual cost to the state of
just over $1 mllion; the reason is included in the fiscal note.
He explained, "The <cost 1is spread across state enployee

salaries, so we don't show a dollar amount in the colums; we
show an asterisk because it's a rate that each enployer wll
need to pay on personal services."

Nunber 1100

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- April 1, 2003



CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked what other enployees are now allowed
[retirenment after] 20 years.

MR BELL |listed fire fighters, police officers, probation
officers, and adult correctional officers. He said there was a
short period when fisheries biologists and certain other Al aska
Departnent of Fish & Gane (ADF&S5 enployees were in the 20-and-
out system however, they were renoved in approximately 1983.
Nunber 1158

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked about ot her states.

MR. BELL explained that each [state's] retirenent systemhas its

own criteria for inproved retirenment benefits or earlier
retirement provisions, for exanple. He said sone states do
of fer peace officers 20-year retirenment, while sone offer them
25-year retirenents. In terms of the definition of "peace

officer,” M. Bell told Representative Berkowitz he'd have to do
sone anal ysis and get back to himregarding that.

Nunmber 1202

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked if the commttee was considering the
issue of a 20-year retirenent at a 37.5-hour workweek or a 40-
hour wor kweek.

MR. BELL said he didn't know.

Number 1275

BERNARD  GATEWOOD, Al aska  Juvenile Correctional Oficers
Association (AJCOA), who works as superintendent of the

Fai rbanks Youth Facility, D vision of Juvenile Justice,
Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS), |isted his past
positions as a Youth Counselor | and 11, which he said are
equivalent to DOC s Correctional Oficer | and |1, respectively,
and as a Youth Counselor 11l at the Johnson Youth Center in
Juneau and in a facility in Anchorage. He nentioned being a

unit | eader, equivalent to a lieutenant in DOC

MR. GATEWOOD said AJCOA is a group of dedicated and determ ned
juvenile justice workers and supporters whose sole mssion is to
correct an inequity that has existed for nmany years: t he
om ssion of youth counselors, unit |eaders, and superintendents
of juvenile institutions from the 20-year peace officer
retirement system He el aborat ed:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- April 1, 2003



It is kind of incredible to ne that we're not included
in the 20-year system because we have the |aw on our
side through the statutes. The statutes clearly
identify youth counselors as peace officers wth
respect to process, service, and neking arrests ...
[under] AS 47.12.270. And the facts are that youth
counselors do the exact sane things that correctional
officers in DOC do.

In the statutes, again, [AS] 18.65.290, it tal ks about
the definition of a correctional officer being
appointed by the conm ssioner of corrections, their
duties being to provide custody, care, security,

control, and discipline of persons charged or
convicted of offenses against the state. And that's
the sanme thing that youth counselors do, with a slight
di fference: juveniles are not convicted; they are
"adjudicated,” and it's the sane thing as being
convi ct ed. And we are not appointed by the

conmi ssioner of corrections because we're in the
Department of Health and Social Services.

But you don't differentiate on the benefits between
the comm ssioner of DOC and [DHSS]; they get the sane
benefits package. And that's what we're asking for.
It seens as though we have been handcuffed - excuse
the pun - by the term "youth counselor.” [We] think
that's a very msleading term it doesn't really
identify exactly what we do. W are, in fact,
juvenile correctional officers. It seens as though
sonetinmes we were left out of the famly inheritance
because we have a different nane.

There's a large disparity between workers of the sane
duties, just in different departnents. W urge you to
correct this inequity. Do the right thing: put us in
the 20-year retirement system just like probation
officers, just |ike correctional officers, whose work
is the sane as ours.

Number 1528
MR. HOLM t hanked M. Gatewood for a prior tour he had given him

through his facility. He asked M. Gatewood to conpare the
threat involved with youths versus adults.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- April 1, 2003



MR, GATEWOOD said the threat that youth counselors face on a
daily basis is simlar to what the adult correctional officers
face and, in sonme cases, simlar to what a police officer faces.
For exanple, kids cone to the facility in handcuffs, brought by
police officers or state troopers. Sonetines they are revved up
on drugs, very angry, and inpulsive; oftentines, they are
suffering from nental illnesses and don't process information
the way soneone else mght. For the nost part, he said, they
are unsure of what their future holds.

MR, GATEWOOD told the commttee that when a youth counsel or goes
to a youth's room in the norning, he/she doesn't know what
exactly what [w || happen]. He reveal ed that youth counsel ors
have been struck, have been the subject of plots to escape, and
have received bodily harm He explained that the kids fashion
knives out of any kind of sharp object. A day for a youth
counsel or can be quite dangerous, he concl uded.

MR, GATEWOOD sai d youth counselors who work on the unit with the
kids work a 40-hour week; it's rare for themto have a [ Saturday
and Sunday] off. Shifts run from7 a.m to 3 p.m, 3 p.m to
11 p.m, and 11 p.m to 7 a.m He told the conmittee that the
unit | eaders and the superintendents work a 37.5-hour week. I n
response to a question by Representative Seaton, M. Gatewood
clarified that those in the admnistrative portion work the
37.5-hour workweek, while those who work hands-on with the kids
wor k 40- hour weeks.

Nunber 1759

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how the job perforned by the youth
counselors conpares wth working at the Al aska Psychiatric
Institute (API).

MR. GATEWOOD answered that he doesn't know, but said a nunber of
kids in the youth correctional facilities have to be transferred
to APl for wvarious reasons. Reiterating that the juvenile
justice system sees a nunber of kids who suffer from nental
illnesses, he said, "Generally, we try to deal with themin the
facilities, just through caring and concern and hunane
treatment. But sonetinmes their illnesses are just too great for
us to deal with and we do have to transfer them to APl for a
brief respite/evaluation.”

Nunber 1815

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- April 1, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN recalled from being a [police officer] that
juveniles were often far nore dangerous than the sane-sized
adul t.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked the commttee to consider, as a policy,
whet her [youth correctional officers] should be included in the
sane category as fire fighters, probation officers, police

officers, and adult correctional officers. He noted that there
may be a fiscal issue to consider later. [HB 183 was held
over.]

ADJ OURNNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
10: 03 a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 35- April 1, 2003



